ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COVM TTEE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
March 14, 2006
8:40 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY
Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senat or Gene Therri aul t
Senator Hollis French
Senator Gretchen Cuess
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY
Representati ve John Coghi |
Representati ve Peggy W/ son
Representative Les Gara
VEMBERS ABSENT
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY
Al'l nmenbers present
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY
Representative Lesil MQiire, Chair
Representati ve Tom Ander son
Representati ve Pete Kott
Representati ve Max G uenberg
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Presentation: Therapeutic Courts

SENATE BI LL NO. 222

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -1- March 14, 2006



"An Act relating to breaches of security involving personal
i nformation, consumer report security freezes, consuner credit
monitoring, <credit accuracy, protection of social security
nunbers, disposal of records, factual declarations of innocence
after identity theft, filing police reports regarding identity
theft, and furnishing consuner credit header information; and
anendi ng Rul e 60, Al aska Rules of Cvil Procedure.”
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
None to report
W TNESS REG STER

Janet McCabe, Chair
Partners for Progress
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Made the introductions to the commttee

Hel en Harberts, Special Assistant District Attorney

Butte County, California

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview regarding success of
t herapeutic courts

Carson Fox, Prosecuting Attorney

Sout h Carolina

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overvi ew regardi ng success of
t herapeutic courts

Robyn Johnson
Ther apeutic Courts
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Added comrents to the overview

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R RALPH SEEKINS called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Judiciary Standing Committees to order at 8:40:35 AM
Present were Senators Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, and Gene
Therriault. Al so present were Representatives Peggy WIson, Les
Gara, and Co-Chair John Coghill.

Presentati on: Therapeutic Courts

8:41:46 AM

JANET MCCABE, Chair of Partners for Progress introduced herself
and advised the conmmttee that the two guests cane to Juneau to
provi de traini ng for t he Juneau Ther apeuti c Court .

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 2- March 14, 2006



Representative Rokeburg recently introduced HB 441, which
establishes a conprehensive and consistent structure for
Al aska’s therapeutic courts to deal with repeat substance abuse
of fenders. Alaska has twice the nunber of DU deaths than any
other state, she contended. She introduced Helen Harberts and
Car son Fox.

8:44: 30 AM
Rep David Guttenberg joined the neeting.

HELEN HARBERTS, Special Assistant District Attorney, Butte
County, California introduced herself. She said she is from a
conservative no-nonsense |aw enforcenent-based culture. In her
community the predom nant drug of choice is nethanphetam ne and
also houses the California State University at Chico, a
nationally recognized *“party school.” CQut of that dubious
distinction, the county has an enornmous alcohol and drug
probl em

8:46: 44 AM

M5. HARBERTS recogni zed that Al aska has done extraordi nary work
in the DU court field. The therapeutic programin Butte County
was the first to successfully treat high-end DU offenders with
Nal prexone and Al aska is now doing the same. She said she refers
to Alaska as a nodel conmmunity that has figured out what works
and has incorporated that treatnent.

8.48: 04 AM

Nationally drug courts have been studied inside and out. Studies
prove that the therapeutic court nodel wrks and reduces
recidivism rates. There are two kinds of people that the
crimnal justice system deals wth; addicts whose addiction
drives them to crimnal behavior, and crimnals who may or may
not use drugs. The crimnals have to be watched differently than
the addicts. People who are addicted go through the drug court
nodel and usually come out tax-paying citizens and usually don’'t
come back. Drug courts stop the recidivism rate and that is a
national ly recogni zed trend.

8:50: 24 AM

Drug courts are smart on crime, extrenely effective with the
addi cted population, amazingly cost-effective, and they save
pri son space for those who really need to spend their life in
prison. Alaska is starting to see the “dreaded drug” known as
met hanphet am ne. Anong neth addicts, the only thing known to
work is the drug court nodel. Nothing el se has worked.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 3- March 14, 2006



8:52: 23 AM

The drug court nodel is perfect for Alaska DU courts. Hi gh-end,
repeat felony offenders, |left wuntreated cone back tinme and
again. Mantine they kill people on the highways and create
havoc in the communities. A therapeutic court saves noney, tine,
and lives. It reduces recidivismrates, fetal alcohol syndrone,
drug-invol ved children, and reduces inpact on dependency courts.

8:54:10 AM

M5. HARBERTS said the program is “the greatest thing since
sliced bread and mashed potatoes.” Her primary mssion has been
to pursue public safety by the nost effective means and that now
means using therapeutic courts because they work. Her county has
seen a drop from a 70 percent recidivismrate to less than 20
percent since incorporation of the nodel.

8:55:34 AM
Senat or Gretchen Guess joined the neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA asked Ms. Harberts whether Nal prexone
wor ked on neth addicts.

M5. HARBERTS responded no. She said Nalprexone is an opiate
antagonist. It works extrenmely well wth alcohol and wth
opiates. It works well wth Vicodin, OxyContin, and heroin
addicts. At this point there is nothing known that helps relieve
nmet h addi cti on.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he received a call from a person who
could not get into an alcohol treatnment program He asked
whet her Nal trexone could be used without the treatnent program

M5. HARBERTS said Naltrexone helps people with cravings and it
allows them to focus on treatnent. The goal of the drug court
and Naltrexone is to allow people to get into treatnent and
stick with it. The real work that is done is done with cognitive
behavi oral therapies inside treatnment and treatnent nust be done
for the duration of one year.

8:57: 44 AM
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeburg joined the conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL comrented that since Alaska is stil
in the pilot program phase they struggle with choosing who gets
to try the drug court. He asked Ms. Harberts how she has dealt
with the issue of deciding whether to go full scale wth
t herapeutic courts.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -4- March 14, 2006



M5. HARBERTS said she did two things. She wote the protocol and
then becanme the chief probation officer and inplenented the
entire problemsolving court system She also kept her feet in
t he general fund because grants and pilot funding does not | ast.
She worked very hard to develop a core budget based in genera
fund. She is an absolute advocate for mainstream ng and genera
fund basing of this type of program because she ran the nunbers
every year and found that her recidivism rate was 14.9 percent
dowmn from 70 percent. She said she realized if she could
i ncorporate the programentirely the departnment’s casel oad woul d
drop by half in five years. Drug court was the salvation of her
department, she stated.

9:01: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON asked Ms. Harberts whether she had
to hire new people or whether she sinply trained her existing
staff to work differently.

M5. HARBERTS said both. The drug court nodel s counter-
intuitive and nakes no sense. Everything is backwards and it
takes a lot of training, for instance, prosecutors do not talk
much in court. The outconme is that it works. As the program grew
she hired new people but to begin with she chose people who were
the nost capable of Jlearning sonmething that was counter-
intuitive

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked Ms. Harberts whether she thought it
was possible to ranp up the courts without an initial nonetary

i mpact .

M5. HARBERTS said the cost would be in supervision resources and
treatnment resources with sone account for court tinme. Oherw se
it is a front-|loaded program but the offset on the other end is
huge and keeps people out of jail.

9: 06: 02 AM
REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL said he watched a therapeutic court
graduation and it was an intensive personal interaction. He

asked her to give an exanple of how they determ ne that a person
is not a crimnal but an addict that possesses crimnal
behavi or.

V. HARBERTS informed the commttee of the assessnent
instruments such as the “LSIR” It is an objective-based
assessnment that allows the departnment to identify who the
crimnals are. A district attorney can also pull out the rap

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 5- March 14, 2006



sheet and look to see where the predom nant crimnal activity
has been. It is easy to identify the addict when the predom nant
crimnal activity is basic theft, basic driving and basic
possession types of crime. Rap sheets that are littered wth
crimes against people and property denote a crimnal that has a
drug problem There are, of course, other technologies that one
can use to determ ne whether or not a person is a psychopath.

9:09: 37 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked the reason her county has nore peopl e under
fel ony supervision and not in the “wellness court.”

M5. HARBERTS said two things. One of them is that wellness
courts go against the existing crimnal justice paradigm The
other is that Butte County has prepared filings for bankruptcy
on three occasions and she is constantly fighting for funding

On the other hand, she said, there are 850 people that she is
supervising in her courts now, so changes have been made.

9:11: 54 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked the nunber of years that her program has
been in effect.

M5. HARBERTS responded she started the first programin 1995.

SENATOR FRENCH said with a decade of experience, she could
probably denonstrate the enornous savings to the county in way
of prison beds and corrections officers.

M5. HARBERTS agreed and advised that people thank her for her
contributions but do little el se.

9:13:37 AM
REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked M. Harberts whether there is
anyt hing that works with neth.

M5. HARBERTS said she has never seen anything that works except
the drug court nodel because it harns the brain in a distinct
way. Meth addicts are arrested nore frequently than other
addicts and treatnment takes |onger than other addictions. Meth
addi cts experience short-term nmenory deficits and experience up
to a year of active auditory and visual hallucinations.

9:16: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked what changes she has seen in
treat ment nodel s.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 6- March 14, 2006



M5. HARBERTS said one of the best things she has seen conme out
of the drug court nodel is an insistence on research-based
practices.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked about including judges in the
Vi si on process.

M5. HARBERTS responded, “Traditionally the judiciary is the
sl owest noving and nost conservative branch of governnent and is
the bel |l wether against w dening swings.” Qur form of governnent
works very well but doesn't work in drug courts, she said.
Peopl e have to keep talking to the judges and give them a break
because sone judges are rated on how fast they can nove
casel oads and drug courts are not churning out nunbers.

9:21: 53 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBURG asked Ms. Harberts for recomendations
in dealing with cultural conflicts.

M5. HARBERTS said be nice. It is still the sane fundanental
busi ness but prosecutors and corrections now have jurisdiction
to “pay attention to nonsters.”

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBURG asked the technology used to deal wth
the crimnals and addicts.

M5. HARBERTS said they use the “SCRAM in DU courts but GPS
technol ogies do not work in her county. There is new technol ogy
that neasures netabolites in urine and detects al cohol use back
three days but it is not currently affordable to her budget.

9:27: 13 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS t hanked Ms. Harberts for her tinme.

9:29:51 AM

CARSON FOX, South Carolina Attorney, advised the commttee that
he cones today to testify on drug courts because they work. His
area had a big problem with crack cocaine. They found the drug
court nodel and he was tasked with putting it together.

The first program started in 1989 in Mam, Florida because the
problem with cocaine was so significant that they gave a judge a
sabbatical to research how to better deal with the problem He
found that nonitoring people closely and giving them intensive
treatment. Today there are alnbst 2,000 courts and they also
have themin South America

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -7- March 14, 2006



9:32: 23 AM

MR COX said when he started working with drug courts the
recidivismrate for nmultiple offenders was over 50 percent and
is now bel ow 20 percent. The nunbers are so well proven that the
New York system now requires every district to have at |east one
drug court and they save over $1 billion dollars a year.
Mul t nomah County in Portland, Oegon determned that for every
dol l ar they spend on drug court prograns they save $10 dol |l ars.

9:36: 45 AM

MR. COX advised the conmttee that he and M. Harberts spent
time training people in the local wellness court in behavior
nodi fication and ethics. He offered to answer questions.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. Cox the nunber of tines the
state has to cone down on the people who fail the drug court.

MR. FOX said it depends on the individual. A recent study shows
that intervention by the judge works because it gets people’s
attention. Using intervention as quickly as possible is a way to
make the nodel work better.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked himto tal k about the tipping point
before they have to send people to jail.

9:40: 12 AM
MR FOX indicated it was an individualistic nmeter. There are
sonme prograns that will designate certain things that get people

kicked out instantly. Nationally 70 percent of people succeed
t hrough the courts.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. Cox to address the issue of
peopl e who have nental health issues and use drugs.

MR. FOX advised that judges refer those people over to the
Ment al Heal th Board.

9:44:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Fox his opinion of granting a
limted driver’s license in certain circunstances as a neans of
positive reinforcenent.

MR FOX said due to Alaska’s large area with no or limted
public transportation; it could becone a jurisdictional issue
He agreed that at times it is necessary in order to keep rura
peopl e in the program

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 8- March 14, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how other jurisdictions handle
multiple offender clients in terns of coordination between the
courts.

MR. FOX advised it depends on the jurisdiction. Sone states
probation falls under the judiciary and other states it falls
under the executive branch so it takes a coordination of
services. The key conponents are training and coordi nation. He
has seen judges cooperate between courts and coordinate the
transfer of the person.

9:49:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Fox the distinction between
the DU court and the drug court in the types of treatnent
el enent s.

MR, FOX advised it is a different population. Alcohol is an
insidious drug but treatnent is different. For exanple, the
testing for alcohol is very different than testing for other
drugs. From a prosecutor’s point of view, drugs like neth do
damage to the brain in six nonths what al cohol generally takes
20 years to do.

9:53:49 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that the veteran’s court in Anchorage is
based on the drug court nodel. He asked whether there are any
i ndi cating denographics or traits established in the court
popul ati on.

MR. FOX responded drug courts started out as a grass roots
program and the local population wll differ from jurisdiction
to jurisdiction.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked him to describe the role that marijuana
plays in the drug courts.

MR. FOX stated that marijuana is far nore potent than it was in
the past and is virtually a different drug. People are
overdosi ng and becom ng addi ct ed.

10: 00: 56 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS asked M. Fox his thoughts on the difference
bet ween addi cts and crim nal s.

MR. FOX replied the issue was individualistic and one difference
is that addicts becone crimnals to support their habit and

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -9- March 14, 2006



without the addiction wouldn’'t normally display crimnal
behavi or.

10: 03: 42 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked himto comment on early intervention

MR. FOX responded addiction doesn’'t know an age. When people
start using drugs the brain stops developing. Treatnent
professionals work wth people who are developnentally nuch
younger than their age. The approach is to apply accountability
no matter what the age is.

10: 07: 15 AM

MS. HARBERTS added juveniles are not little adults and the brain
devel opnment is wunique. Adolescent crimnals do not have the
capability of handling conpound, conplex tasks.

10: 10: 38 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked her to comment on Fetal Al cohol Syndrone
(FAS) .

M5. HARBERTS said there is a huge correlation between FAS and
al cohol and drug addictions. The sane is true with children born
inside hones where adults use neth. There are devel opnental
issues and sone are treatable and sone are not. Addiction

treatment experts wll advise that early intervention prevents
addi cti on.
10: 13: 33 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS said 85 percent of Alaska prisoners are indigent
drunks and many people don’t want to change.

M5. HARBERTS said the higher end people would decline the
invitation to treatnent. It is a nyth that a person has to
bottom out before they woul d accept hel p.

MR. FOX added that a 33-year study concluded the |onger a person
is in treatnment, the better they do. There generally is no
i npact when treatnent lasts |ess than 90 days.

10: 18: 28 AM
ROBYN JOHNSQON, Ther apeutic Courts Program  Coordi nat or
i ntroduced herself and offered to answer questi ons.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Ms. Johnson for an overview of the
Al aska Therapeutic Court system

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 10- March 14, 2006



M5. JOHNSON informed the committee there are three different
courts. The nental health court in Anchorage is one of the first
in the country and is going very well and a second one was added
in Palnmer last year. The first two addiction courts were opened
as a result of HB 179 and were a felony DU court in Anchorage
and Bethel. A msdenmeanor wellness court was established in
Anchorage and has expanded to incorporate state offenders.

In the past two years they have received funding fromthe Al aska
Ofice of H ghway Safety and the Department of Transportation
(DOM) .

10: 21: 12 AM

M5. JOHNSON added they are adding a wellness court in Fairbanks
and that Anchorage also has a non-crimnal famly care court for
those at risk of losing parental rights. In Anchorage they have
a felony drug court and a felony DU court as well.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG noted that he has prelimnary approva
for $900,000 fromthe DOT as a result of the “seatbelt bill.”

10: 22: 37 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS t hanked everyone for the presentation.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 10:23:05 AM

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -11- March 14, 2006



